1995

Mark Plaskon v. Darwin Hayes : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

JURISDICTION AND NATURE OF PROCEEDINGS

This is an appeal from a decision rendered by the Honorable Jon Memmott, Judge of the Second Judicial Court of Davis County, State of Utah, sitting without a jury, in which he awarded the Plaintiff a total Judgment against the Defendants in the sum of \$1,392.98, plus prejudgment 10% interest from June 10, 1988 through March 4, 1993. Jurisdiction is conferred upon this Court pursuant to Section 78-2a-3(2)(j) Utah Code Annotated, (1953).

STATEMENT OF ISSUES PRESENTED ON APPEAL AND STANDARD OF REVIEW

1. Whether the Trial Court erred in not granting Plaintiff additional compensatory damages for replacement costs of the loss of his personal property.
2. Whether the Trial Court erred in failing to award the Defendant loss of business income during the years he was unable to use the decoys.
4. Whether or not punitive damages should have been awarded to the

Plaintiff against the Defendants for the deliberate violation of 38-3-1 Utah Code Annotated.

5. Whether the Trial Court, after being given an opportunity through a Motion to Reconsider to correct the above, abused its discretion in not reconsidering its decision.

Standard of Review In this case the reviewing Court must review the case in the context of whether or not the Trial Court abused its discretion and/or failed to consider the appropriate legal doctrines with respect to damages.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This is an appeal from a decision awarding the Plaintiff a Judgment rendered by the Honorable Jon Memmott, sitting without a jury. This case was originally filed in Case No. 890746591 by the Plaintiff against the Defendants for loss of personal property due to an improper sale of property stored in a storage unit. The case originally came on for Trial before Judge Douglas Cornaby, sitting without a jury on October 4, 1990. The Court dismissed the case at that time based upon the argument that the Plaintiff did not have standing. The case was appealed to the Utah Court of Appeals in Case No. 90587CA and the lower Court's decision was reversed. This Court found that the Plaintiff did have standing and that the Defendants had deliberately violated Section 38-3-1 Utah Code Annotated with respect to the notice provisions and therefore, the case was remanded solely for determination of the

Plaintiff's damages.

A Trial was held before the Honorable Jon Memmott on February 17, 1993 wherein the Judge ruled in favor of the Plaintiff for damages for the loss of decoys, but did not award the Plaintiff any other compensatory damages with respect to the loss of income or replacement the decoys, or punitive damages for the deliberate act.

A Motion to Reconsider was filed in June of 1994 because no Findings of Fact or Conclusions of Law had been entered. The Court denied that Motion on March 6, 1995 and this matter was then appealed on April 5, 1995.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

(All references to the Statement of Facts in this Brief will be to the transcript of the first hearing in front of the Honorable Judge Douglas Cornaby on October 4, 1990 which contained the essential facts and was not duplicated in the second hearing and will be filed with this Court.)

That in June of 1987 the Plaintiff was residing in Bountiful, Utah with an individual by the name of Paulette McFarland. (Tp. 9) At that time the Plaintiff owned a large number of duck and game bird decoys which he utilized in a guide service, guiding individuals on private hunting trips in the northern part of Utah. (Tp. 10-11) Difficulties arose between the Plaintiff and McFarland, causing McFarland to move all the Plaintiff's belongings, including the decoys, from their residence to a storage unit.

On or about July 11, 1987 McFarland went to the Double D Storage unit

owned by the Defendants in this action and moved Plaintiff's property into a unit. (Tp. 68-69) At that time a document entitled "Double D Storage Garage Rental Agreement" was signed. The Agreement, although filled out by McFarland, indicated that the Plaintiff agreed to rent the storage unit 108 for one (1) month for a total of \$40.00. The document was actually filled out by Paulette McFarland (Tp. 35) in Plaintiff's name and countersigned by Carma Jenkins, one of the owners of Double D Storage Garage. (Tp. 69) In addition, McFarland told Jenkins that while she would pay the first months rent, the Plaintiff would be responsible for any thereafter. This was acceptable to Jenkins and she knew that Plaintiff was to be the responsible party. (Tp. 69-70)

Following the initial conversation and the initiation of the storage unit, the Defendants had no further contact with Paulette McFarland, and on various occasions sent notices of delinquency to the Plaintiff. (Tp. 71)

That after a number of unsuccessful attempts to contact the Plaintiff a decision was made to sell the contents. No notice was ever sent to the Plaintiff concerning the sale of the property pursuant to Section 38-2-1 Utah Code Annotated, nor was there a Sheriff's Sale or any public notice of a sale. (Tp. 78) A private sale was made to an individual named James Kenneth Oswald in June of 1988. (Tp.54-56)

The Plaintiff was never restored to his decoys and was never compensated for them despite demand until this matter came on for Trial on

February 17, 1993. At that Trial the Court heard evidence with respect to four (4) values of the decoys. The replacement value in 1993, the 1990 resale value, the value the Plaintiff paid for the decoys initially, and the amount paid by James Oswald. (See Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law attached hereto as Appendix "A")

The Court rejected replacement value in its interpretation and simply focused on the original amount Plaintiff paid for the decoys. The Court further rejected any loss of income from the decoys despite the unrefuted testimony of Plaintiff and Steve Brown, who indicated that the Plaintiff had a guide service and would have been able to guide trips every year from 1987 on.

The Court's only basis for rejecting that amount was that the Court found lack of credibility in the Plaintiff's testimony on in the year 1986 because of income stated on a tax return and the cost of guiding hunts. The Court never considered the continuation of the business in 1988 through 1993. (See the Court's Ruling attached hereto as Appendix "B")

Following the second hearing the Court was asked to reconsider the issues both replacement costs and the lack of award for loss of income and the Court rejected the same. It is from that rejection that this appeal is taken.

STATEMENT OF COUNSEL

I, John T. Caine, represent to the Court that I was the attorney who represented the Defendant at Trial. That I have prepared the Docketing Statement, and have prepared this Brief.

I do believe there are meritorious appellate issues and that this appeal is not frivolous.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The Court erred in not considering as part of total compensatory damages the replacement costs of the decoys and awarding some punitive damage for the Defendants wilful sale and violation of Section 33-3-1 Utah Code Annotated, and further abused its discretion following a Motion to Reconsider in not giving Plaintiff additional damages for the loss of business income.

ARGUMENT

POINT I

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN FAILING TO AWARD COMPENSATORY DAMAGES BASED UPON THE CURRENT REPLACEMENT VALUE OF THE DECOYS AND IN FAILING TO AWARD PUNITIVE DAMAGES FOR THE DELIBERATE ACTS OF THE DEFENDANTS

In this case there are certain undisputed events. The first is that Plaintiff stored expensive duck decoys and other duck hunting implements in the Defendants' storage garage and did not pay the rent that was required. It is also undisputed that the Defendants, contrary to the provisions of 38-3-1 Utah Code Annotated, as amended, deliberately disposed of those decoys without giving any notice to the Plaintiff and did so at a greatly reduced price. It is further undisputed that the Plaintiff had a hunting service in which he

guided hunters and used the decoys during the Fall of each year, and was unable to do so following the loss of the decoys through the sale. This guide service had been publized on local television and was well known throughout the Wasatch Front area.

The fact that the Court determined it was an avocation or an additional vocation is irrelevant because there was no evidence disputing that Plaintiff did indeed derive an income from these sources. The Court heard four (4) different values with respect to the property and determined that it would consider only the purchase price of the property when the Plaintiff originally purchased it. This is in direct contravention of the law in this jurisdiction.

The Court is directed initially to the case of Winters v. Charles Anthony Inc., 586 P.2d 453 (Utah 1958) In that action the Utah Supreme Court essentially adopted the Restatement of Tort position with respect to determining damages for the property taking or destruction of personal property. In that case the Court stated as follows in justifying giving replacement value to the aggrieved party:

“Replacement value is the amount it would cost to replace the property, Not the wholesale cost to manufacture a similar one. It is well settled that the fundamental principle of damages for the loss of bailed property is to restore the injured party to the position he would have been in had it not been for the wrong of the other party.” (Id at 455)

In addition, the Court also held that the rule of damages is flexible that can be modified in the interest of fairness (Id at 453) and also accepts the

Restatement of Torts position that the value of property does not entirely control the determination of compensatory damages. Damages are allowable for all the detriment proximately caused by the wrongful destruction of the property, as long as damages are provable and reasonable. (Also see Damages - 22 Am. Jur.2d 427)

This Court has more recently adopted this rationale of the Anthony case in Jenkins v. Equipment Center Inc., 869 P.2d 1000 (Utah App. 1994) wherein it recites this case at 1004.

The Court's error therefore is because of the deliberate and wilful nature of the Defendant's conduct, that it Court should have adopted the replacement cost of the decoys at the time of Trial, which was a much higher value, either under the theory that was the appropriate value or in the context of a punitive award. To simply adopt only the original purchase price would not be concert with the above referenced cases.

Because the Court did not apply the applicable law, the case should therefore be remanded for a further hearing with respect to those values and with a direction from this Court to the Court under the Anthony rationale, apply that standard to the measure of damages.

POINT II

THE COURT ERRED IN NOT ALLOWING THE PLAINTIFF JUDGMENT FOR FUTURE LOSS OF BUSINESS INCOME

In its ruling and in denying the Motion for Reconsideration the Court

completely refused to give the Defendant, as part of a measure of damages, any loss of future business income. The Court's theory was essentially that although there was uncontroverted evidence that the Plaintiff took hunting parties out for a fee in the Fall and Winter of the year, and that a necessary part of that hunting excursion was the use of the decoys, that because this was a "avocation" rather than a primary vocation and because there was a certain expense involved, the Court could not award damages.

There is no Utah case which says that the loss of business income is based upon whether or not this is a person's primary business or not. The rule is if in fact income is generated, whether it is a secondary business or avocation, if the deliberate loss, deliberate destruction, or in this case the deliberate sale without notice of the Plaintiff's property necessary to effect income from the avocation, that this is a proper compensatory damage award.

While the Court did not accept the Plaintiff's figures for the 1986-1987 years because of his income tax, the Court further compounded the error by at that point not considering lost income for future years when the uncontroverted testimony of Steve Brown and Plaintiff clearly indicated that there was a market for this type of service and that the Plaintiff had received exposure on television as providing this type of guide service. This is not an area of speculative damages which are not allowed by law, but certainly one grounded in the realistic estimates of the Plaintiff who had previously guided individuals and groups for upland game bird hunting.

The error in this case is essentially that the Court ruled as a matter of law that because this was an avocation, the Plaintiff was not entitled to any future damages. It is that specific ruling that Plaintiff takes issue with because there is simply no basis for denying recovery when the uncontroverted evidence was that this avocation did generate income.