1995

Mark Plaskon v. Darwin S. Hayes, Beth Hayes, Duane H. Jenkins, Carma Jenkins, dba Double D Storage Garages : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Plaskon's appeal should be dismissed because it was not filed in a timely manner. However, if Plaskon's appeal is not dismissed, the Trial Court's judgments should be affirmed on appeal for the following reasons. First, Plaskon's arguments are not supported by the record, inasmuch as he failed to request a trial transcript pursuant to Rule 11(e)(2) of the Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure. Second, the Trial Court's award of damages to Plaskon, based upon the decoys' value at the time they were initially purchased by Plaskon, was proper, in that the Court's findings and conclusions are well supported by the record. Furthermore, Plaskon's request for punitive damages is improper on appeal inasmuch as he failed to initially raise such issue at trial. Third, the Trial Court properly denied Plaskon's request for compensatory damages, in the form of lost business income, because Plaskon failed to establish his lost profits

with reasonable certainty. Finally, this Court should award Double D damages based upon the frivolous nature of Plaskon's appeal.

ARGUMENT

I. THIS COURT SHOULD DISMISS PLASKON'S APPEAL AS UNTIMELY

Rule 4(a) of the Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure provides that:

[I]n a case in which an appeal is permitted as a matter of right from the Trial Court to the Appellate Court, the Notice of Appeal required by Rule 3 shall be filed with the clerk of the Trial Court within thirty (30) days after the date of entry of the Judgment or Order appealed.

Although the Trial Court entered judgment in this matter on September 13, 1994, Plaskon failed to file this appeal until April 5, 1995, in direct violation of Rule 4(a).

Plaskon argues that he had no obligation to file an appeal until thirty days following the Trial Court's signing of an Order denying his Motion to Reconsider, despite the fact that the Trial Court denied Plaskon's Motion in a signed Minute Entry on September 12, 1994. Plaskon reasons that the statute of limitations was tolled until the Court signed an Order formally dismissing his Motion. Plaskon's argument is contrary to established Utah case law. In fact, the Utah Supreme Court has held that "[a] signed minute entry may be a final order for purposes of appeal . . . [if] 'the ruling specifies with certainty a final determination of the rights of the parties and is susceptible of enforcement.'" Dove v. Cude, 710 P.2d 170, 171 n. 1 (Utah 1985) (quoting Cannon v. Keller, 692 P.2d 740, 740 n. 1 (Utah 1984)). See also McNair v. Hayward, 666 P.2d 321, 328 n. 6 (Utah 1983).

The signed Minute Entry in this matter was a final order for purposes of appeal because it specified with certainty that there was no good cause shown in Plaskon's Motion to Reconsider

regarding the issue of lost profits. (R. At 162.) The Minute Entry was also susceptible of enforcement because the parties were put on notice that the Court would not reconsider its failure to award Plaskon compensatory damages for his alleged loss of business income. Accordingly, Plaskon's appeal should have been filed on or before October 12, 1994, within thirty days after the Trial Court signed the Minute Entry.

Plaskon attempted to correct his failure to file a timely appeal by forwarding an Order to Judge Jon M. Memmott, for the purpose of formally denying his Motion. (R. at 163.) Significantly, Plaskon did not file this Order until March 6, 1995, approximately six months after the Judge signed the Minute Entry. Plaskon's filing of an Order with the Court at such a late date was nothing more than a thinly veiled attempt to circumvent the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure. In fact, under Plaskon's rationale, he could have waited another two or three years to file an Order with the Court and would have still preserved his ability to appeal the Court's decision. This Court should not tolerate such circumvention of the legal process nor allow Double D to be prejudiced by such an untimely appeal.

Even if this Court decides that the above Minute Entry was not a final order for purposes of appeal, Plaskon was still obligated to file his appeal on or before October 13, 1994. Utah case law provides that when a Motion to Reconsider is filed prior to the entry of a final judgment or order, the time for filing a Notice of Appeal is not extended because such a motion is "simply a reargument" of the issues raised by the parties at trial. Ron Shepherd, Inc. v. Sheilds, 882 P.2d 650, 653-655 (Utah 1994). This is exactly what occurred in this case. Plaskon filed his Motion to Reconsider before Judge Memmott signed his Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Judgment and Order. Because Plaskon asked the Court to reconsider its ruling regarding loss of

business income in his Motion to Reconsider and because Plaskon brought this Motion before the Judge had entered its Findings and judgment on this case, Plaskon's Motion was nothing more than a reiteration of the arguments he presented to the Court at trial. Accordingly, Plaskon could only have properly appealed Judge Memmott's ruling within 30 days after the Trial Court entered its Findings and judgment on September 13, 1994.

**II. THIS COURT SHOULD REFUSE TO HEAR PLASKON'S APPEAL
BECAUSE HE FAILED TO PRESERVE HIS ARGUMENTS FOR
APPEAL**

The Trial Court's findings should be presumed correct by this Court because Plaskon failed to provide the Court with a trial transcript, pursuant to Rule 11(e)(2) of the Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure, and failed to provide support in the record for his arguments. Rule 11(e)(2) provides:

If the appellant intends to urge on appeal that a finding or conclusion is unsupported by or is contrary to the evidence, the appellant shall include in the record a transcript of all evidence relevant to such finding or conclusion. Neither the Court nor the appellee is obligated to correct appellant's deficiencies in providing the relevant portions of the transcript.

Although Plaskon's Brief is replete with assertions that the Trial Court improperly weighed "uncontroverted testimony" and rendered improper holdings, Plaskon never supported his assertions with the record, as Rule 11(e)(2) mandates. Hence, although Plaskon purported to marshal evidence in his Brief, Plaskon failed to disprove the Trial Court's findings because he did not support his arguments with the record.

The Utah Court of Appeals has said the following regarding the appellant's obligation under Rule 11(e)(2):

‘If the appellant intends to urge on appeal that a *finding* or *conclusion* is unsupported by or is contrary to the evidence, the appellant shall include in the record a transcript of all evidence relevant to such finding or conclusion.’ In essence, Rule 11 directs counsel to provide this court with *all evidence* relevant to the issues raised on appeal. ‘Where the record before us is incomplete, we are unable to review the evidence as a whole and must therefore presume that the verdict was supported by admissible and competent evidence.’

Sampson v. Richins, 770 P.2d 998, 1002 (Utah App. 1989) (quoting Smith v. Vuicich, 699 P.2d 763, 765 (Utah 1985)).

Inasmuch as Plaskon has failed to provide this Court with “an adequate record to preserve [his] arguments for review,” Horton v. Gem State Mut. of Utah, 794 P.2d 847, 849 (Utah App. 1990), and has, consequently, failed to “marshall all the evidence” to support his arguments, Id., his “claim[s] of error [are] ‘merely . . . unsupported, unilateral allegation[s]’ which this Court should refuse to resolve. Horton at 849 (quoting State v. Nine Thousand One Hundred Ninety-Nine Dollars, 791 P.2d 213, 217 (Utah Ct. App. 1990)).

III. THE TRIAL COURT’S AWARD OF DAMAGES WAS PROPER

The general law regarding a Trial Court’s award of damages is that “[i]f there is a reasonably certain basis for it in the evidence, a Trial Court’s award of damages will be affirmed on appeal.” Henderson v. For-Shor Co., 757 P.2d 465, 468 (Utah App. 1988). In the present case, the Trial Court’s award of damages to Plaskon, based upon the value of the decoys when Plaskon purchased them, was proper and should be affirmed on appeal because the Court’s findings and conclusions regarding damages are well supported by the record. The Court did not randomly award damages at its discretion, but carefully considered all of the evidence and testimony brought before it in making its decision. In fact, after receiving all of the evidence on this issue, the Court determined that it could value the decoys in one of four ways. (R. at 127.)

After considering each of these possible valuations and the testimony preferred on each, the Court chose to value the decoys based upon the price they were initially purchased by the Plaintiff. (R. at 127.) Hence, the Court's decision was deliberately made only after considering all of the evidence before it and, accordingly, should be affirmed on appeal.

Plaskon also argues that the Trial Court erred by failing to award him punitive damages. Because Plaskon has initially requested punitive damages on appeal, and not at trial, this Court should not consider Plaskon's request. "Generally, a [party] who fails to bring an issue before the trial court is barred from asserting it initially on appeal." State v. Archambeau, 820 P.2d 920, 922 (Utah App. 1991). See also State v. Pugmire, 898 P.2d 271 (Utah App. 1995), State v. Sepulveda, 842 P.2d 913 (Utah App. 1992) and State v. Brown, 856 P.2d 358 (Utah App. 1993). No exception should be made for Plaskon.

IV. THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN DENYING PLASKON COMPENSATORY DAMAGES FOR LOSS OF ALLEGED FUTURE BUSINESS INCOME

The Court's failure to award Plaskon damages for his alleged loss of business income was proper and completely consonant with Utah case law. Contrary to Plaskon's interpretation of the Court's holding in this regard, the Court based its decision on Plaskon's utter inability to give the Court a consistent figure upon which to base Plaskon's loss of business income, not upon the Court's finding, in Plaskon's words, that an award of future income was inappropriate because Plaskon's hunting business was an "avocation" rather than a "vocation."

As the record illustrates, Plaskon failed to establish his lost profits with reasonable certainty. In fact, the Court noted that based upon the inconsistent figures provided in Plaskon's

testimony, tax return, affidavit, and interrogatories that “the Plaintiff really [didn’t] have an accurate record of what his income was and that it really [was] an estimate.” (R. at 141.) The Court continued, “I think that there’s some question as to what the true level of income was for 1986.” (R. 141.) Based upon Plaskon’s inability to provide the Court with an accurate statement of his income and his concomitant “lack of credibility,” the Court could not have awarded Plaskon lost business income because such decision would be in opposition to an established body of Utah case law on this issue.

In Utah the general rule is that “[l]ost profits must be established with reasonable certainty.” Cook Associates, Inc. v. Warnick, 664 P.2d 1161, 1165 (Utah 1983). However, because there are “so many factors of uncertainty” in establishing lost profits, “ordinarily profits to be realized in the future are too speculative to base an award of damages thereon.” First Sec. Bank of Utah, N.A. v. J.B.J. Feedyards, Inc., 653 P.2d 591, 596 (Utah 1982) (citing Howard v. Ostergaard, 515 P.2d 442, 445 (Utah 1973)). Based upon Plaskon’s inconsistent testimony regarding his business income during the 1986 hunting season, the Court could make no other conclusion than that Plaskon’s future profits were too speculative to be awarded.

Plaskon’s argument that the Court denied him an award of future profits because his hunting business was an “avocation” rather than a “vocation” is completely groundless. As the record indicates, the Court did refer to the part-time nature of Plaskon’s business. (R. at 142.) However, in so doing the Court was not stating that future profits are only awarded when the business is a full-time operation. Rather, the Court referred to Plaskon’s hunting business as more of a hobby than a profession. Plaskon’s testimony demonstrated that his hunting business

was anything but an operation which functioned on a steady basis from year to year. In this regard the Court noted:

. . . [F]or a number of reasons, including obtaining a new position in a job, marital problems, for a number of reasons the Plaintiff chose of his own accord not to continue the business. He had the opportunity to, if he desired to. But in 1987-88 decided not to continue in the hunting or guide business. In 1988 again had the opportunity, if he had wanted, to contact the people to continue the business, but for reasons of his own choice, decided not to continue the business for the first part of the 1988 season. Therefore, the Court finds that while this was maybe not a vocation, it was more of an avocation of the Plaintiff, something that I think he clearly enjoyed doing, that he had skill.

(R. at 142.)

The Court's statement that Plaskon did not produce a net positive income figure further demonstrates that the Court relied on Utah case law in denying Plaskon lost business income, not upon the avocation versus vocation distinction. (R. at 142.) The general rule in Utah is that "[a] party is entitled to recover only lost net profits." Sawyers v. FMA Leasing Co., 722 P.2d 773, 774 (Utah 1986). In the record, Plaskon only introduced evidence, although inaccurate and inconsistent, of his gross income during the 1986 hunting season. However, Utah case law requires parties seeking lost future income to introduce evidence of their business' net profits "by computing the difference between the gross profits and the expenses that would be incurred in acquiring such profits." Id at 774. Plaskon failed to do so. Accordingly, inasmuch as "proof of lost gross profits does not afford courts a proper bases for a damage award, where there is no evidentiary basis on which to calculate net profits with reasonable certainty," the Court had a further basis upon which to properly deny Plaskon's request for net lost profits. Id.

**V. THIS COURT SHOULD AWARD DOUBLE D DAMAGES FOR
DEFENDING PLASKON'S FRIVOLOUS AND UNTIMELY APPEAL**

Pursuant to Rule 33(b) of the Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure, a party is entitled to damages, in the form of single or double costs . . . and/or reasonable attorney fees, “if the court determines that a[n] . . . appeal taken . . . is either frivolous or for delay. “A frivolous appeal is one “that is not grounded in fact, not warranted by existing law, or not based on a good faith argument to extend, modify, or reserve existing law,” while an appeal taken for delay is one which is “interposed for any improper purpose such as to harass, cause needless increase in the cost of litigation, or gain time that will benefit only the party filing the appeal, motion, brief, or other paper.” Utah Ct. App. R. 33(a).

Plaskon’s appeal is frivolous because it is not “well grounded in fact or law,” Backstrom Family Ltd. Partnership v. Hall, 751 P.2d 1157, 1160 (Utah App. 1988), and was taken for delay because it was ““taken with no reasonable likelihood of prevailing,”” will result ““in [the] delayed implementation of the judgment of the lower court,”” has ““increased the costs of litigation,”” and has ““dissipat[ed] . . . the time and resources of the . . . Court.”” Porco v. Porco, 752 P.2d 365, 369 (Utah App. 1988) (quoting Auburn Harpswell Ass’n. v. Day, 438 A.2d 234, 239 (Me. 1981)). Plaskon’s appeal was not only brought in an untimely manner, but it raises on appeal an issue which Plaskon never introduced at trial, it purposefully misinterprets the Trial Court’s holding regarding lost business income by creating the “avocation” versus “vocation” distinction, it ignores Utah case law regarding compensatory damages and the Trial Court’s discretion in awarding such damages, and its arguments are not supported in the record, as mandated in Rule 11(e)(2).

Based upon the above, Double D respectfully requests that this Court exercise its equitable powers by awarding Double D the attorney fees which it has incurred in defending